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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
AT SEATTLE

FANTASTIC SAMS IFRANCHISE
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation,

C08-0706¢

COMPLAINT

No.
Plaintiff,

V.

REGIS CORPORATION, a Minnesota
corporation; JANCORPORATION, INC., a
Washington corporation; THOMAS HUNTER
and JAN ELLIOTT HUNTER, husband and
wife, and their marital community,

Defendants.

R T T L

The plaintiff Fantastic Sams Franchise Corporation (“FSFC”), through the
undersigned counsel, for its Complaint alleges as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The defendént Regis Corporation (“Regis™), which owns the largest chain of hair
salons in the country, has embarked on a campaign to raid its competitor, the FANTASTIC
SAMS chain of hair salons, of which the plaintiff is the franchispr. Regis has induced the
owners of FANTASTIC SAMS salons to breach their agreements with FSFC by ceasing ‘Fo

operafe their FANTASTIC SAMS hair salons and instead selling the assets of those salons
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to Regis, so that it can operate them under one of its brands. In this case, Regis induced
JanCorporation, Inc. (“JanCorporation™) and its owners, Thomas Hunter (“Hunter™) and
Jan Elliott Hunter, who owned the exclusive right to develop and grant third pai'ties the
right to develop franchised FANTASTIC SAMS Salons in the Seattle-Tacoma market, to
sell its FANTASTIC SAMS hair salons to Regis. Despite having some sixteen years left
in the term of its regional license agreement with FSFC, and without any prior notice to
FSFC, or any attempt to keep the salons in the FANTASTIC SAMS system,
JanCorporation sold the assets of its FANTASTIC SAMS salons to Regis, Which
immediat;:ly began operating them under its HAIR MASTER brand, though without -
completely removing all the aspects of the FANTASTIC SAMS service marks from the
premises. FSFC brings this action to seek redress for the wrongs done to it as a result of

this conduct.

THE PARTIES
1. FSFC is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in
Massachusetts.
2. Regis is a Minnesota corporation with its principal place of business in
Minnesota.
3. On information and belief, JanCorporation is a Washington corporation

with its principal place of business in Washington within this judicial district,

4, Hunter is a citizen and resident of Washington. On information and belief,
he is the sole shareholder of JanCorporation and controls the affairs of JanCorporation. On
information and belief, Hunter and Jan Elliott Hunter are husband and wife and constitute a

marital community under the laws of the State of Washington. All acts or omissions
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alleged io have been done by either were done for and on behalf of the other and their

marital community.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This is a civil action arising under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051 e
seq., and the contracts between the parties.

6. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332, 1367 and 2201-02, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 1121 and 1116. This is an
action between parties of diverse citizenship with an amount in controversy that exceeds
$75,000.

7. Venue in this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a} because a
substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to these claims occurred in this
District.

THE FANTASTIC SAMS SYSTEM

8. FSFC oiJerates and licenses others to operate hair salons under the
nationally-recognized service mark “FANTASTIC SAMS” and related marks (the
“FANTASTIC SAMS Marks™). FSFC owns numerous federal registrations for the
FANTASTIC SAMS Marks. Each of these registrations is valid, incontestable, and fully
enforceable.

9. FSFC frahchises FANTASTIC SAMS salons princtpally through Regional
License Agreements, pursuant to which a Regional Licensee is granted the right, and
undertakes the obligation, to develop and/or grant third parties subfranchises to develop

and operate FANTASTIC SAMS salons in a given region.
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10, There are approximately 1400 FANTASTIC SAMS salons in North
America. FANTASTIC SAMS salons are operated under the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks
in association with the distinctive FANTASTIC SAMS trade dress and in accordance with
the standards, specifications, and methods prescribed by FSFC (the “FANTASTIC SAMS
System”™).

THE AGREEMENTS BETWEEN FSFC AND JANCORPORATION

11.  FSFC’s predecessor in interest as franchisor of the FANTASTIC SAMS
franchise system and JanCorporation entered inio a FANTASTIC SAMS Regional License
Agreement in 1984. Pursuant to the original Regional License Agreement (“RLA™),
JanCorporation was granted the exclusive right to develop FANTASTIC SAMS salons in
sixteen counties in the Seattle-Tacoma market. JanCorporation agreed to open ten
FANTASTIC SAMS salons per year for the first eight years of the RLA. JanCorporation
also agreed to pay the franchisor a fixed weekly fee per salon that was opened, a fixed
advertising fee, plus a fee of 15% of all receipts from its licensees or from any other
business or activity in which the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks or system were used.

12 FSFC’s predecessors and JanCorporation entered into several amendments
and modifications to the RLA. Typically, these amendments and modifications reduced
the number of salons JanCorporation was required to open, and extended the term of the
RLA.

13, Pursuant to the RLA, as it was in effect as of February 2008,
JanCorporation had the obligation toropen eleven (11) FANTASTIC SAMS salons in its

territory, either itself or through subfranchisees, and the term of the RL.A extended to 2024.

2
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The RLA did not grant JanCorporation any right to terminate the RLA prior to the
expiration of the term. |

14.  In addition, JanCorporation agreed in the RLA, as amended, that it would
“use its best efforts to enhance the value of the [FANTASTIC SAMS] service mark in the
region.”

15. lihe RLA, as amended, granted FSFC the option to purchase any
FANTASTIC SAMS salons operated by JanCorporation.

16.  Hunter executed a personal guaranty of all of JanCorporation’s obligations
under the RLA (the “Guaranty™).

17. For approximately the past 10 years, JanCorporation had no sublicenses for
the operation of FANTASTIC SAMS salons by third parties. Rather, all the FANTASTIC
SAMS salons in its region were owned and operated by JanCorporation itself.

18. On information and belief, as of February 2008, JanCorporation was
operating six (6) FANTASTIC SAMS salons.

REGIS’S RAIDING OF THE FANTASTIC SAMS SYSTEM

19.  Regis owns and licenses others to operate hair salons under the various
brands it owns. Regis operates hair salons nationwide under several different brand names,
including without limitation REGIS, SUPERCUTS, COST CUTTERS, PRO-CUTS and
HAIR MASTERS. Some of Regis’s brands are franchised.

20.  Regis owns and licenses more hair salons in North America than any other
company. Regis operates or licenses others to operate moré than 11,000 hair salons in
North America. Appreximately 4,000 of these hair salons operating under Regis’s brands

are franchised.
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21.  Over the past approximately 18 months, Regis has embarked on a campaign
to raid the FANTASTIC SAMS system by acquiring the assets of FANTASTIC SAMS
hair salons from FANTASTIC SAMS licensees, despite the licensees’ contractual
obligations to continue operating their hair salons under the FANTASTIC SAMS marks.

22. Onor about February 26, 2008, Regis and JanCorporation entered into an
agreement pursuant to which Regis acquired all the assets of JanCorporation’s company-
owned FANTASTIC SAMS hair salons.

23. On or about February 27, 2008, all of the hair salons formerly operated by
JanCorporation under the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks opened for business with the
FANTASTIC SAMS exterior signs covered up, and signs bearing Regis’s HAIR
MASTERS mark covering them.

24, Notwithstanding the covering of the exterior FANTASTIC SAMS signs, the
interior of many of JanCorporation’s former hair salons continued to display some of the
FANTASTIC SAMS Marks.

23, On February 27, 2008, counsel for JanCorporation sent to FSFC a letter
purporting to terminate the RLA, despite the absence of any right of termination in the
RLA.. The letter stated no basis for the termination of the RLA.

26.  Prior to the February 27, 2008 letter, JanCorporation never advised FSFC
that it intended to sell its FANTASTIC SAMS hair salons.

27, JanCorporation at no time offered to sell its FANTASTIC SAMS hair

salons to FSFC.
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28.  Oninformation and belief, JanComorétion did not attempt to sell its
FANTASTIC SAMS hair salons to anyone who would have continued to operate tht;m as
part of the FANTASTIC SAMS System.

29.  Oninformation and belief, Regis was aware of the existence of the RLA.

30.  Oninformation and belief, Regis was aware that the term of the RLA had
not expired.

31.  Regis should have known that there was an agreement between
JanCorporation and FSFC at the time it acquired the assets of the FANTASTIC SAMS
salons from JanCorporation.

32.  Regis’s conduct had the purpose and effect of éliminating competition.

COUNT ONE
(Service Mark Infringement)

33.  FSFCrealleges every other paragraph of this Complaint.

34, Prior to turning over the assets of their FANTASTIC SAMS salons to
Regis, JanCorporation and Hunter failed to remove all the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks
from the salons. On taking control of those assets, Regis continued to use and display
some of the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks in the salons.

35. Regis’ continued use of the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks without
authorization or license is likely to cause confusion in the public mind concerning the
source, affiliation, or sponsorship of goods and services being offered under the
FANTASTIC SAMS Marks.

36. Consumers are likely to believe, contrary to fact, that the salons formerly

operated by JanCorporation are somehow still affiliated with the FANTASTIC SAMS
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System, or that Regis’s HAIR MASTERS salons are somehow affiliated with the
FANTASTIC SAMS System.

37.  Regis is willfully, intentionally, and knowingly using service marks and
designations that are confusingly similar to the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks in violation of
Section 32 of the Lanham Act, 15U.8.C. § 1114.

38.  To the extent this infringement is ongoing, it is causing irreparable injury to
the reputation and goodwill of FSFC, which will éontinue unabated unless enjoined by this
Court. In addition, this infringement has caused, and is causing, monetary damage to
FSFC.

39.  JanCorporation and Hunter are liable under Section 32 of the Lanham Act,
15 U.S.C. § 1114 as contributory infringers.

COUNT TWO
(Federal Unfair Competition)

40.  FSFC realleges every other paragraph of this Complaint.

41.  The actions of the defendants constitute a false designation of the origin,
sponsorship or affiliation of the hair salon that formerly operated under the FANTASTIC
SAMS Marks.

42, The defendants’ conduct violates section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1125(a).

43.  To the extent this conduct is ongoing, it is causing irreparable injury to the
reputation and goodwill of FSFC, which will continue unabated unless enjoined by this

Court. In addition, this conduct has caused, and is causing, monetary damage to FSFC.
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COUNT THREE
(Breach of Contract—Failure to Deidentify)

44.  FSFC realleges every other paragraph of this Complaint.

45.  The RLA requires JanCorporation to cease using the FANTASTIC SAMS
Marks and to take the necessary steps to deidentify the premises of its FANTASTIC
SAMS salons on termination or expiration of the RLA.

46. When JanCorporation turned over control of its FANTASTIC SAMS salons
to Regis, it failed to remove the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks from the premises, and failed
otherwise to deidentify the premises. This constitutes a breach of the RLA.

47.  JanCorporation’s breach of the RLA also constitutes a breach of the
Guaranty.

48.  FSFC has been damaged as a result of JanCorporation’s breach of the RLA
and Hunter’s breach of the Guaranty.

COUNT FOUR
(Breach of Contract—Failure to Develop)

49.  FSFC realleges every other paragraph of this Complaint.

50.  JanCorporation failed to develop the number of FANTASTIC SAMS hair
salons required by the RLA. This constitutes a breach of the RLA and of the Guaranty.

51.  FSFC has been damaged by JanCorporation’s breach of the RLA and
Hunter’s breach of the Guaranty by its loss of the income it would have received if
JanCorporation had complied with its obligation to develop FANTASTIC SAMS hair

salons.
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COUNT FIVE
(Breach of contract--Sale of Hair Salons to Regis)

52. FSFC realleges every other paragraph of this Complaint.

53.  JanCorporation’s cessation of operation of its FANTASTIC SAMS hair
salons prior to the expiration of the term of the RLA breached its obligation to operate
F ANTASTIC SAMS hair salons through the year 2024, and to pay license fees and
advertising fees through that time. This also constitutes a breach of the Guaranty.

54, JanCorporation’s sale of fhe assets of its FANTASTIC SAMS hair salons to
a direct competitor breached its obligation to promote the goodwill of the FANTASTIC
SAMS Marks in its region. This also constitutes a breach of the Guaranty.

55.  JanCorporation’s purported termination of the RLA was in breach of the
terms of the RLA, and constitutes a repudiation of the RLA. This also constitutes a breach
of the Guaranty.

56,  FSFC has been, and is being, damaged by JanCorporation’s and Hunter’s
breaches by the loss of the inéome stream to which it is entitled through 2024, as well as
by the loss of goodwill to the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks by the absence of the
FANTASTIC SAMS Marks from the Seattle-Tacoma market and the conversion of
FANTASTIC SAMS locations to those of a direct competitor.

57.  Inaddition, FSFC has sustained costs and attorneys’ fees as a result of
JanCorporation’s and Hunter’s breaches of contract, in an amount that has yet to be

determined.

COUNT SIX
(Tortious interference with contract)

58.  FSFC reaileges every other paragraph of this Complaint.
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59.  Regis induced JanCorporation to breach its agreement with FSFC.

60.  Regis intended that JanCorporation breach it contract with FSFC.

61.  Regis was aware that the breach of the contract between FSFC and
JanCorporation was a necessary. consequence of its acquisition of the assets of
JanCorporation’s FANTASTIC SAMS salons.

62.  Regis acted with the intent to harm FSFC.

63.  FSFC has been damaged by Regis’s tortious conduct.

COUNT SEVEN
(Violation of Washington Unfair Competition Statute)

64.  FSFC realleges every other paragraph of this Complaint.

65.  The conduct of Regis constitutes an unfair method of competition in
violation of RCW § 19.86.020.

66.  FSFC has been damaged in its business or property as a result of Regis’s
violation of this statute.

- COUNT EIGHT
(Violation of Massachusetts Unfair Competition Statute)

67.  FSFC realleges every paragraph of this Complaint.

68.  The conduct of Regis constitutes an unfair method of competition in
violation of Massachusetts Code ch. 93A §2.

69.  FSFC has been damaged in its businéss or property in Massachusetts as a
result of Regis’s violation of this statute.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, FSFC demands entry of judgment in its favor awarding the

following relief:
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1. Preliminarily and permanently enjoining Regis and all those acting in
concert or privity with it, including any of their agents, servants, employees, and attorneys,
from using the FANTASTIC SAMS Marks in any manner whatsoever, including, without
limitation, in connection with the advertising, promotion or sale of any product or service,
and including, without limitation, all signs, furniture, fixtures, equipment, advertising
materials, stationery, forms, and any other articles that display the FANTASTIC SAMS
Marks.

2. Ordering Regis to file with the Court and serve on counsel for FSFC, within
five (5) calendar days after service of any injunction issued herein, a written report setting
forth in detail, under oath, the manner and form in which it has complied with such
injunction.

3. Awarding FSFC, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1117, (a) Regis’s profits, (b)
FSFC’s damages, and (¢) the costs of the action.

4. Awarding FSTC treble damages and attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C.
1117(a) and (b).

5. Awarding FSFC the damages it has suffered as a result of the breach of
contract of JanCorporation, and the guaranty of Hunter, in an amount to be proven at trial
but believed to be at least $ 1 miilion.

6. Awarding FSFC the damages it has suffered as a result of Regis’s tortious
conduct and unfair competition, in an amount to be proven at trial but believed to be at

least § 1 million.
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7. Awarding FSFC enhanced, punitive, or treble damages as allowed by law,

including without limitation the provisions of the Washington and the Massachusetts unfair

competition statutes.

8. Awarding FSFC its costs in prosecuting these claims, including its

reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in accordance with the terms of the RLA, the Guaranty,

and the Washington and Massachuseits unfair competition statutes,

9. Such other and further relief as the Court may deem appropriate.

DATED this 344 day of May, 2008.

Of Counsel:

James C. Rubinger

PLAVE KOCH PLC

12355 Sunrise Valley Drive

Suite 230

Reston, VA 20191-3492
Telephone: (703) 774-1208
Facsimile: (703) 774-1201
Email: jrubinger@plavekoch.com
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Davis Wright Tremaine LLP
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Alan S. Middleton, WSBA No. 18118
Suite 2200

1201 Third Avenue

Seattle, Washington 98101-3045
Telephone: (206) 757-8103

Fax: (206) 757-7103

E-mail: alanmiddleton@dwt.com




